
Agenda Item B.3 
CPMS CONSENT CALENDAR 

 Meeting Date:  April 17, 2018 
__________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Michelle Greene, City Manager 
 
CONTACT: Carmen Nichols, Deputy City Manager 
  
SUBJECT: Agreement for Professional Services with SCI Consulting Group for 

Cannabis Land Use Ordinance, Related Tax Ballot Measure, and 
Business License Ordinance 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

A. Authorize the City Manager to execute an Agreement for professional services with 
SCI Consulting Group for the completion of the Cannabis Land Use Ordinance 
review; analysis and preparation of taxation methodology, tax ballot measure and 
ordinance; and a related business license ordinance/regulatory fee for a total not-to-
exceed amount of $73,000 and a termination date of June 30, 2019. 
 

B. Authorize a budget appropriation of $73,000 from General Fund Unassigned Fund 
Balance to account 101-5-1200-500. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Following a community workshop held on September 7, 2017 seeking input on how the 
City should regulate commercial cannabis, the City Council instructed staff to develop a 
cannabis ordinance that allows and regulates recreational and commercial cannabis. 
The Planning Department developed a zoning regulatory framework, and staff 
presented the regulatory framework and received feedback from the Planning 
Commission and the public during two workshops in October 2017. Having compiled the 
input received from the Planning Commission, public, and other governmental 
stakeholders, the Planning staff is finalizing a final Draft Land Use Ordinance which will 
be presented at a workshop scheduled for April 26, 2018 noticed as a joint meeting of 
the City Council and the Planning Commission.  
 
RRM Design Group (RRM), under contract for the development of the City’s New 
Zoning Ordinance, has been assisting City staff with the Cannabis Land Use Ordinance, 
which, if adopted by City Council, will become a Chapter in the City’s New Zoning 
Ordinance once it is adopted. Due to the specialty work and the expertise desired by the 
City, RRM sub contracted with SCI Consulting Group (SCI) to review and suggest edits 
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to the Draft Cannabis Land Use Ordinance and provide expert support at public 
meetings.   
 
As we are nearing the completion of the Draft Cannabis Land Use Ordinance, it is 
necessary to begin the work on a proposed Cannabis-related taxation measure, provide 
the financial methodology to support the measure, and move forward with a business 
license ordinance. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The tax ballot measure and ordinance, and the business license ordinance/regulatory 
fee is assigned to the Deputy City Manager, Finance Director, and Deputy City Attorney. 
Initially, staff received a proposal from HdL Companies (HdL) for the sales tax analysis 
and potential ballot measure and related ordinance, and had early discussions as to the 
process. City staff also requested other proposals and received one from SCI. Due to 
potential conflicts of two separate consultants possibly providing the combined cannabis 
work, HdL withdrew its proposal.  
 
SCI’s cannabis-related expertise and experience working with other local jurisdictions 
(City of Lompoc and San Luis Obispo County) and other cities, and due to SCI’s 
familiarity with the Draft Ordinance, will allow the remaining work to be completed 
efficiently and within the timeframe required to file with the County of Santa Barbara 
Election office, should the City Council wish to pursue a sales tax on commercial 
Cannabis.  
 
Due to the SCI’s current relationship with RRM as a subcontractor, SCI will terminate its 
current services with RRM on the Cannabis Ordinance and instead complete the work 
under this proposed service agreement directly with the City.  
 
In addition to completing the review of the Draft Cannabis Land Use Ordinance, the 
scope includes assisting City staff by 1) Developing a Tax Methodology to ensure 
optimal revenue for the City and one that is viable for the cannabis business. The tax 
will be designed to support the passage of a cannabis related tax. A matrix will include 
studies on several tax methodologies for each potential allowable cannabis business 
type; this will lead into an ordinance and ballot measure 2) Developing a Business 
License Fee/Regulatory fee and ordinance for full cost recovery of commercial 
cannabis-related services based on a comprehensive user fee study report. A fee 
structure will include all commercial cannabis-related categories. 
 
Should this contract be approved by the City Council, it is expected that at the April 26, 
2018 joint meeting, SCI will include a discussion of the taxation and fee structure 
methodology, with the goal of providing proposed ordinances for first reading along with 
the first reading of the Cannabis Land Use Ordinance on June 5, 2018. Between April 
26th and the first hearing, SCI will meet with staff and work to bring an item to City 
Council to present the analysis and recommendations to support a ballot measure, and 
the draft business license ordinance.  
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The contract includes provisions for required public meetings, stake holder and staff 
meetings. Future, optional work of monitoring and compliance is listed in the proposal. 
Examples of other cities’ cannabis programs indicate that a monitoring and compliance 
program is essential to ensure that businesses are operating and complying with the 
City’s regulations and reporting proper sales tax. How robust of a program the City of 
Goleta may require, and who (in house, or contract) conducts the duties, has not yet 
been determined. Staff will examine the feasibility of this being conducted by SCI. The 
costs associated with a monitoring and compliance program are fully cost-recoverable. 
 
This proposal also includes an optional proposal for assistance with community 
outreach in support of a proposed tax. SCI can assist the City with public outreach 
strategies and voter informational services. Staff have not yet determined the extent of 
assistance required, but can seamlessly work under the not-to-exceed amount.   
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
 
The proposal with SCI Consulting Group is for a total not-to-exceed amount of $73,000 
with a termination date of June 30, 2019. Awarding this contract will require an 
appropriation of $73,000 from the General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance to the City 
Manager’s Professional Services Account (101-5-1200-500). . City staff will be working 
with the consultant for cost recovery of expenses associated with developing the land 
use ordinance, cannabis ordinance, all work related in this scope, and other City 
expenses related to cannabis can be recaptured in the regulatory fees.  
 
There is approximately $1,498,998 available in General Fund Unassigned Fund 
Balance.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
 
The City Council may elect not to authorize the proposed agreement. Doing so will 
delay the analysis, and preparation of potential revenue through a cannabis sales tax 
measure for the November 2018 election; and the preparation and establishment of a 
Business License/Regulatory fee.  
 
Reviewed By: Legal Review By: Approved By: 
 
 
___________________             ___________________          ___________________     
Carmen Nichols  Michael Jenkins Michelle Greene 
Deputy City Manager City Attorney             City Manager 
 
     
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Agreement for Professional Services with SCI Consulting Group 
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ATTACHMENT 1: 

 
Agreement for Professional Services with SCI Consulting Group 
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